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Location

22 LE CATEAU STREET PASCOE VALE SOUTH, MORELAND CITY

Municipality

MERRI-BEK CITY



Level of significance

Registered

Victorian Heritage Register (VHR) Number

H0138

Heritage Overlay Numbers

HO103

VHR Registration

October 9, 1974

Amendment to Registration

November 15, 1978

Heritage Listing

Victorian Heritage Register

Statement of Significance

Last updated on - July 2, 2004

What is significant?
Wentworth House at Pascoe Vale, known as La Rose during the nineteenth century, was built from c1842 for Dr
Farquhar McCrae. He was the brother-in-law of Georgiana McCrae, who made several references to Farquhar
and La Rose in her diaries. Farquhar had migrated from Scotland in 1839 with his mother, wife, sisters and
children, and moved to La Rose in 1842. He was from the Scottish gentry, and was immediately successful in the
colony, becoming a magistrate and the director of several companies and a bank, and was prominent in early
colonial society. He got into financial difficulties during the depression of the early 1840s, and in about 1845
moved to Sydney, where he practised medicine. During this time the property was leased and farmed by Coiler
Robertson, who purchased it in 1852, after McCrae's death. It passed in the mid 1850s to James Robertson
(probably Coiler's son), a partner with Robert and Peter McCracken in one of Melbourne's most successful
brewery companies. The property of more than a hundred hectares remained intact until 1899, after which it was
progressively subdivided, after 1920 by the War Service Homes Commissioner. The house is now on about an
acre. It was renamed Wentworth House between 1908 and 1911.

Wentworth House is a single storey basalt house with a gabled slate roof, designed by an unknown architect in a
simple Colonial Georgian style. It is a U-plan house with the rear wings enclosing a courtyard, and was built in
three stages. The first stage was probably completed in 1842, and consisted of an asymmetrical basalt rubble
house of three main rooms, one on one side and two on the other side of a central hall, and with a kitchen
attached at the rear. The house was later enlarged considerably, probably in the 1850s. A large cut bluestone
wing of three rooms was then added to the west side of the house, consisting of a principal room with the front
wall extended out in a bay, and probably two bedrooms at the rear; another room was added behind the kitchen,
and these rear wings now enclosed a court; verandahs were built across the front and sides of the house, onto
which the main front rooms opened through French windows, and around two sides of the rear court; a six-room
detached service block was also built at the rear, which included a larger kitchen, two other service rooms and
probably also three servants' rooms. In about 1870 a three room brick addition, with a cellar beneath, was built
onto the east side of the original east wing. There were also bluestone outbuildings, including a combined stable
and coach-house, which collapsed in 1991, and a two-room toilet block. The garden retains little of its original



layout and only a few plants of any age, including two pepper trees and three olives, probably planted in about
1900. There are also some gums and box trees which are probably regrowth from the original native flora on the
site.

How is it significant?
Wentworth House, formerly known as La Rose, is of architectural and historical significance to the state of
Victoria.

Why is it significant?
Wentworth House is architecturally significant as one of the oldest surviving houses, and perhaps the oldest
surviving stone house, in Victoria, and a rare example of early colonial building techniques. It is significant as an
intact example of an early colonial house form, with a U-plan and a separate detached service block. It
demonstrates the increasing size of houses in nineteenth century Victoria: in the early days of the colony houses
were relatively small, but they increased significantly in size as the wealth of their owners, and their desire for
status, increased during the century.
Wentworth House is historically significant as the home of Farquhar McCrae, an eminent early gentleman
colonist, and a member of the notable McCrae family. It has strong associations with pioneer agriculturalists in
the district, especially Coiler Robertson, and with James Robertson, a prominent early brewing entrepreneur.
[Online Data Upgrade Project - 2004]

Permit Exemptions

General Exemptions:

General exemptions apply to all places and objects included in the Victorian Heritage Register (VHR). General
exemptions have been designed to allow everyday activities, maintenance and changes to your property, which
don’t harm its cultural heritage significance, to proceed without the need to obtain approvals under the Heritage
Act 2017.

Places of worship: In some circumstances, you can alter a place of worship to accommodate religious practices
without a permit, but you must notify the Executive Director of Heritage Victoria before you start the works or
activities at least 20 business days before the works or activities are to commence.

Subdivision/consolidation: Permit exemptions exist for some subdivisions and consolidations. If the subdivision or
consolidation is in accordance with a planning permit granted under Part 4 of the Planning and Environment Act
1987 and the application for the planning permit was referred to the Executive Director of Heritage Victoria as a
determining referral authority, a permit is not required.

Specific exemptions may also apply to your registered place or object. If applicable, these are listed below.
Specific exemptions are tailored to the conservation and management needs of an individual registered place or
object and set out works and activities that are exempt from the requirements of a permit. Specific exemptions
prevail if they conflict with general exemptions.

Find out more about heritage permit exemptions here.

Specific Exemptions:

General Conditions: 1. All exempted alterations are to be planned and carried out in a manner which prevents
damage to the fabric of the registered place or object. General Conditions: 2. Should it become apparent during
further inspection or the carrying out of works that original or previously hidden or inaccessible details of the place
or object are revealed which relate to the significance of the place or object, then the exemption covering such
works shall cease and Heritage Victoria shall be notified as soon as possible. Note: All archaeological places
have the potential to contain significant sub-surface artefacts and other remains. In most cases it will be
necessary to obtain approval from the Executive Director, Heritage Victoria before the undertaking any works that

https://application-hub.app.planning.vic.gov.au/hv/createForm/EDNotificationHV
https://www.heritage.vic.gov.au/permits-and-approvals/heritage-permit-exemptions


have a significant sub-surface component.

General Conditions: 3. If there is a conservation policy and planall works shall be in accordance with it. Note:A
Conservation Management Plan or a Heritage Action Planprovides guidance for the management of the heritage
values associated with the site. It may not be necessary to obtain a heritage permit for certain works specified in
the management plan.

General Conditions: 4. Nothing in this determination prevents the Executive Director from amending or rescinding
all or any of the permit exemptions. General Conditions: 5. Nothing in this determination exempts owners or their
agents from the responsibility to seek relevant planning or building permits from the responsible authorities where
applicable. Minor Works : Note: Any Minor Works that in the opinion of the Executive Director will not adversely
affect the heritage significance of the place may be exempt from the permit requirements of the Heritage Act. A
person proposing to undertake minor works must submit a proposal to the Executive Director. If the Executive
Director is satisfied that the proposed works will not adversely affect the heritage values of the site, the applicant
may be exempted from the requirement to obtain a heritage permit. If an applicant is uncertain whether a heritage
permit is required, it is recommended that the permits co-ordinator be contacted.

Construction dates 1841,  1850,  1870, 

Heritage Act Categories Registered place, 

Hermes Number 919

Property Number

History

Wentworth House at Pascoe Vale, known as La Rose during the nineteenth century, was built from c1842 for Dr
Farquhar McCrae. He was the brother-in-law of Georgiana McCrae, who made several references to Farquhar
and La Rose in her diaries. Farquar had migrated from Scotland in 1839 with his mother, wife, sisters and
children, and moved to La Rose in 1842. He was from the Scottish gentry, and was immediately successful in the
colony, becoming a magistrate and the director of several companies and a bank, and was prominent in early
colonial society. He got into financial difficulties during the depression of the early 1840s, and in about 1845
moved to Sydney, where he practised medicine. During this time the property was leased and farmed by Coiler
Robertson, who purchased it in 1852, after McCrae’s death. It passed in the mid 1850s to James Robertson
(probably Coiler’s son), a partner with Robert and Peter McCracken in one of Melbourne’s most successful
brewery companies. The property of more than a hundred hectares remained intact until 1899, after which it was
progressively subdivided, after 1920 by the War Service Homes Commissioner; the house is now on about an
acre. It was renamed Wentworth House between 1908 -11.

The draft statement of significance and the above history were produced as part of an Online Data
Upgrade Project 2004. Sources were as follows:
Documents in Heritage Victoria file.

Extent of Registration

Historic Building No. 138 Wentworth House, 22 Le Cateau Street, Pascoe Vale South (to the extent of that area
outlined in red on the plan attached to the file).
[Victoria Government Gazette No.102 - November 15, 1978, p.3572]

This place/object may be included in the Victorian Heritage Register pursuant to the Heritage Act 2017. Check
the Victorian Heritage Database, selecting 'Heritage Victoria' as the place source.

For further details about Heritage Overlay places, contact the relevant local council or go to Planning Schemes
Online http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/

http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/

